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INDEPENDENT AUDITCR’S REPORT

To the Members of Synegra EMS Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Synegra EMS Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards under- section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
.Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.

. Emphasis of Matter

As disclosed in note 49, that the management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on
the Company's operations, financial performance and position as at and for the year ended March 31,
2020 and has concluded that there is no impact which is required to be recognised in the financial
statements. However, the impact may be different from that assessed as at the approval of the
financial statements and the Cornpany will continue to closely menitor ary material changes to future

economic conditions.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Material Uncertainty related to Going concern

As disclosed in note 48, the Company has incurred losses of Rs, 438.90 lakhs (previous year Rs. 223.92
lakhs) during the year ended March 31, 2020 and, as of that date, has accumulated loss of Rs, 967,97
lakhs (Previous year Rs. 529.07 lakhs). Further, the Company's net worth is completed eroded as on
that date. These events or conditions indicate that a materfal uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the management
has reasonable expectation, based on the estimate of future cash flow projections that support the
carrying value of the tangible and intangible assets of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and
committed financial support from the Holding company and the promoters, that the Company would
have adequate' resources to continue its operational existence for the foreseeable future,
Accordingly, the financials have been prepared on going concern basis and no impairment provision
has been recognised.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
ihformatfon Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report including Annexures but does not include
the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the standatone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standatone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalene financial statements or our knewledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Thase Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of

adequate accounting records in accerdance with the provisiens of the Act for safeguarding of the
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assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiat controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are alse responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will atways detect a material misstatement when it
_exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these financial statements. '

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Financial

Statements.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 included in these financial statements are
based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 for the year ended March 31, 2019 on which we issued
an unmodified audit opinion vide our reports dated May 15, 2019 on those financial statements, as
adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to
the ind AS, which have also been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, '

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31 , 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

- statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our

€)

separate Report in “Annexure C”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our informatien and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position.
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts f@r 3__ :_':-3_:-_
which there were any material foreseeable losses,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to
information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Anp Mundhra
Partner

Membership No. 061083
UDIN: 20061083AAAACL3I770

Place: Pune
Date: June 15, 2020
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3}(i} of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of

such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underltying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit finedings, including any signific:am

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

* Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied'with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Anup Mundhra

Partner

Membership No, 061083
UDIN: 20061083AAAACL3770

Place; Pune
Date: June 15, 2020
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEME NTS
OF SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors' Report]

i.
(a)

(b)

(<)

iii.

iv.

vi.

The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment).

All the fixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous year in accordance
with a planned programme of verifying them, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification,

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable properties held
by the Company as at March 31, 2020 and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of
the Order are not appticable to the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management, In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification
between the physical stock and the book records.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom
the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the
Company has not made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in
accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under,

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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vii.

(b)

(©

viti,

ix.

xi.

xii.

xiii.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has been generally regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues
applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable,

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and
any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

" defaulted in repayment of dues to the banks. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings

from financial institutions and debenture holders.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (ix} of the Qrder are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of materiat
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of sectlon 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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Xiv,

Xv.

xvi.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the -
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company,

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Anup Mundhra

Partner

Membership No.061083
UDIN: 20061083AAAACL3770

Place: Pune
Date: June 15, 2020
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
{ndependent Auditors’ Report]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial centrols with reference to financial statements of Synegra EMS
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
-of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl} (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
- maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,

as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
 Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controts
vith reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal finarcial
wntrols with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of interhal
financial controts with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evatuating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control basedd on

“te assessed risk. The procedures setected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the

ssessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

eror,

Ve believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

ACompany's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounfing
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, internal financiat controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financlal statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal

cantrol stated in the Guidance Note.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Anup Mundhra

Partner
Membership No.061083
UDIN: 20061083AAAACL3770

Place: Pune
Date: June 15, 2020



SYNEGRAEMS LIMITED -
BALANCESSHEET AS ON 315T MARCH, 2020
{Amount  BINR , unless otherwise stated)

As at 315t March, 2019

As x50 Aprl, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Particulars Notes | As at 31st March, 2020
ASSETS
Non-curr et assets RN
Property, plant and equipment 5 5,89,32,680 1,83,52,363 Ry ENK
Other int angible assets [ 1,39,503 2,01,693 FER
Goodwilt 7 . . ¥4, 6,180
Financlal asots . - BN
(i} Othe rfinancial assets 8 38,000 38,000 20,000
Deferred tax asset (net) 36 - - Lot
Non Curreit Lax assets {net) 9 3,27,495 1,49,455 ©90,150
Other norv<urrent assets 10 98,88,237 - o
Total non-turrent assets 6,93,25,921 1,87,41,511 3,22,06,663
Current asets
Inventories 11 2,04,72,294 1,49,12,8%6 3.30,24,330
" [Financial asets '
{f) Tradereceivables 12 52,00,744 4,06,81,014 B1258,477
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 13 63,270 2,50,982 1,97,660
(it} Bankbatances other than cash and cash equivatent 14 2,17,51,602 2,11,69,499 1,99,47 485
{iv} Loars 15 1,27,000 83,000 ~1 00
{v} Otherfinancial assets 16 11,359 . i
Other current assets 17 < 47,45,017 19,00,605 B7,16,176
Total current assets 5,23,71,286 7,89,97,996 8,33,06,959
TOTAL ASSETS 12,16,97,207 9,77,39,507 11,56,03,222
EQUITY ARD LIABILITIES
|Equity
Equity share capital 18. 4,50,00,000 4,50,00,000 4,50,00,000
Other equity 19 (9,23,53,773) (5,14,78,225} (3,05,159,052)
Total equity (4,73,53,773) {64,78,225) 1,44,84,948
Liabilities
Non-current abilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 48,82,109 2,85,68,334 1,42,05,018
Provisions 21 5,77,845 3,111,077 2,91,011
Total non-current liabilities 54,59,954 2,88,79,411 1,44,96,029
Current liabilities
Financial tiabilities
. (i) Borrowings 12 13,21,49,044 4,96,64,236 4,03,04,781
(ii) Trade payables 23
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 10,368 8,40,047
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 1,82,73,056 1,99,89,214 4,02,30,414
(iil) Other financial liabilities 24 53,138,164 50,92,473 47,09,257
Other current liabilities 25 76,86,392 2,772,727 2,41,964
Pravisions 26 1,44,370 3,09,303 2,95,788
Total current liabilities 16,35,91,026 7,53,38,321 8,66,22,245
TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,90,50,980 10,42,17,732 10,11,18,274
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12,16,97,207 9,77,39,507 11,56,03,222
See accompanying notes te the financial statements 1-50

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:105047w

AW

Anup"Mundhra
Partner
Membership No. 061083

Place; Pune
Date:15th June,2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Synegra EMS Limited

CIN ; U31909GA2016PLCO12969

. R. Naik
Director
DiN: 00002013

Place; Verna-Goa
Date:15th June,2020

N

Matarajan Sankara

Whole - lime Director and CEQ

DIN: 07968430

Place: Bangalore
Date: 15th June, 2020




SYNEGRAEMS LIMITED

STATEM ENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020

{Amount n INR , unless otherwise stated)

‘ For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars NOLOS | 4ot March , 2020 314t March , 2019

INCOME |
Revenue> fiom Operations 27 3,00,94,990 21,86,70,717
Other i cone 28 37,99,7%1 37,719,155
Total Incame “4,04,94, 741 22,14,40,077
EXPENSES
Cost of rav materials consumed 29 3,95,72,251 19,24,50,239
Purchase of Traded goods 30 ) 13,58,089
Changes i1 inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 31 98,37,972) (4,73,522)
Employe e benefits expense k¥ 2,43,03,428 2,33,60,8%0
Finance costs 33 1,13,27,430 57,79.981
Depreciatin and amortisation expense 34 96,15,459 1,38,89,720
Other expenses 35 94,04,422 84,782,470
Total expenses 8,43,85,018 14,48,37,847
{Loss) before tax (4,38,90,277) (2,23,87,97H)
Tax expense

Current. tax 36

Deferredtax 36 :

Earller Year Tax Adjustments : 3,670
Total tax expense - 3,670
{Loss) for the year {(4,38,90,277) {2,23,91,64%)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (6,10,686) (1,30,613)
Income tax effect - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (6,10,686) {1,30,613)
Total cornprehensive incame for the year (4,45,00,963) {2,25,22,258)
Earnings per Equity Share

Basic eamnings / (loss} per Equity Share 37 (9.75) {4.98)

Diluted earnings / (loss) per Equity Share 37 (9.75) {4.98

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-50¢
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:1465047W

e

Antp Mundhra
Partner
Membership No. 061083

~ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Synegra EMS Limited
CIRL: U31909GA2016PLCO12969

e

MNatarajan Sankara
Director Whole-time Directer and CEQ
DiN: 00002013 DIN:07968430

Place: Verna-Goa
Date:15th June,2020

Place: Bangalore
Date:15th June,2020

r Place: Pune
Date:15th June,2020




SYNEGRA EMYLIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

(Amount i PR, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equitwshare capital

Particulars

As at 315t March, 2020

As ot 315t March, 2019

As at 150 April, 7018

Eauitysshares of Rs, 10 each issued, subseribed and fully pald up
Openirg

Add: 1sued during the year

Less: Buwght back during the vear

4,50,00,000

v

,50,00,000

B

A,50:00, 000

4,50,60,600

4,50,00,000

Closlres 4,50,00,000
(B) Other squity
Reserves and surpius
Capftal Surplus / (Deflclt) In the .
Particulars ‘ FVTOCI Reserve on Total
Contribution | Statement of Profit and Deflied Benefils
Loss
Balanceas at 1st April, 2018 - -
Profit /ilLoss) for the year . {2,23,91,645) {2,23,91,0603)
Additions during the year 15,59,085 . . 149, %5G, 085
Other <omprehensive income / (ioss) for the year . . (1,30,613) (1,30,613)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 15,59,085 (2,23,91,645} {1,30,613) {2,09,63,173)
Balanceas at 31st March, 2019 15,5%,085 (2,23,91,645) {1,30,613) {2,09,63,17))
Reserves and surplus Total
; Surplus / (Deficlt) in the
Particulars FVTGC! Reserve on
Capital Statement of Prafit and Defined Benefits
Contribution Loss
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 15,59,085 {2,23,91,64%) {1,30,613) (2,09,63,173)
Profit / (Loss) for the year . (4,38,90,277} (4,38,90,277)
Additions during the year 36,25,415 . : 36,25,415
Other comprehensive income / {loss) for the year - (6,10,686) (6,10,686)
Total comprehensive income for the year 36,25,415 {4,38,90,277) (6,10,686} (4,08,75,548)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 51,84,500 (6,62,81,922) (7,41,299) (6,18,38,721)

See accempanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per aur report of even date
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:105047W

Anup Mundhra
Partner
Membership No. 061083

Place: Pune
Date:15th June, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Synegra EMS Limited

CIN ; U31909GA2016PLCH 2969

K, R. Naik
Director
DIN: 00002012

Place: Verna-Goa
Date:15th June, 2020

Matarajan Sankara

Whole-time Director and CEQO -

DIN:07968430

Place: Bangalore
Date:15th June, 2020




SYNEGRRA EMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2020
tAmour tin INR , unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Fer the Year Endoed
316 March, 2020

For the Yoar Ended
d1st Margh, 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
Net {lns s bafore tax
Adjustrrents for:
Deprestiation and amortization expenses
Finari<e cost
Intereit Income
(Profit) / Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment
Sundrybalances written off {net)
Falr value gain on sale of Investments
Unreatsed Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Fluctuation {net)
Operatirg toss before working capital changes

Changesin working capital

(Becreasy) in trade payables

Increase in provisions

{Decrease) in financial liabilities

Increase in non-financial liabilities

{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables
{Increase) in ather financial assets

(Increase) / Decrease in other current/non-current assets
Cash generated (used in) operations

Income tax paid

Net cashiflows (used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Payment for property. plant and equipment and intangible assets
Purchase of Current Investment

Proceeds from sale of Current Investments

Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Interest received
Net cash flow (used in} / from investing activities (B)

Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowings

Interest Payments

Lease liability payments

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (C)

Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Balances with banks

On current accounts

Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

(4,38,90.277)

96, 15,459
113,207,430
(37,48,347)
12,51,205)
5002

3,93,419

(22, 7.97)

1, 35.00, 720

87,779,984
(13.50,5%0)
(12,00, 606)
(4,097,754
(19, 34%)
(3,067,044

" (2,60,48,519)

101, 20,990)

(27,32,680)

{2,03,76,69%)

1,01,835 33,50
(1,843,408}
74,13,660 30,763
(55,59, 398} 1,81,11,434
3,54,77,317 (194,220,537
(6,93,870} {16,64,873
(1,27,32,649} 68,16,171
(49,57,707) (1,19,93,156)
{1,78,040} (67,535

(51,395,747}

(4,20,5%,991}

{5,01,33,592) {2,57,403)
. $10,00,000)

. 10,19,348
2,51,205 12,00,006
33,04,755 12,562,760
{4,65,77,632) 22,24,22%
6,07,80,197 2,94,38,113
(36,79,$17} (39,77,608)
(55,75,413} (55.75,414)
5,15,25,667 1,98,85,091
{1,87,712) 53,322
2,50,982 1,97,660
63,270 1,50,982
47,593 2,34,296
15,677 16,686
63,270 2,50,982

Non Cash Movement in Financing Activity

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2020

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2019

Borrowings (including current maturities of long term Debt}

Lease liability

28,94,454
11,29,670

(1,05,91,410)
15,16,397

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:10504

0

L4
Anup Mundhra &
Partner S B anco
Membership No. 061083 i

Place: Pune
Date:15th June, 2020

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Synegra EMS Limited

CiN ; U31909GAZ016PLCO12%69

y

K. R. Naik
Director
DIN: 00002013

Place: Verna-Gea
Date:15th June,2020

A

Natarajan Sankara

Whote-time Director and CEO e

DIN:07968430

Place: Bangalore
Date:15th June,2020
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{a)

(b)

(d}
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2.2

SYPMNEGRA EMS LIMITED
NOTTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1st MARCH, 2020
(Amaunt in INR , untess otherwise stated)

1 General Information
Synegra EMS Limited (“Company") was incorporated on 17th August, 2016, The Company Is In the business of manufacture of variouy
categories of electronic and T products on job work basls and also engages in contrael manufacturing for Orlginal Eguipmen
Manufacturers ("EMS"” business)

2 Significant accounting policles
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are as under:

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compllance with nd AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies {(ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201% and Compiantos (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

The financial statements up to year ended 315t March, 2018 were prepared fn accordance with the accounting standards netified
under the section 133 of the Act, read with with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

These financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018 are the first set of flnancial statements prepared {n acgordance
with Ind AS, Refer note 4 for an explanation of how the Company has adopted ind AS.

Accounting palicies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly 1ssued accounting standard 1s
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change In the accounting pelicy hitherto in use,

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the hiistorical cost basls except for the following iLems:-

|tems Measurement Basis
Certain Financial Assets and Financials Liabilites Fair Value
Net Defined Benefit (asset) / liability Present va_lue of defined benefit ohligation {ess fair value of
plan assets

Classification inte current and non-current:

All assets and labilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria sel
cut in the Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of services and the time between the rendering of service
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycte as twelve months for the
purpose of current and noncurrent classification of assels and tHalsilities,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimate and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and labilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the
year and disclosures of contingent labilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the
accompanying financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as al the
date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on a periodic basis, Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are
revised and in any future years affected. Refer Note 3 for details on estimates and judgments.

Functional and presentation currrency
These standalone financials are presented in Indian Rupees,which is also the company functional currency. Al amounts have been
rouded off to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

Property, plant and equipment
Praperty, plant and equipment, are stated at historical cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is carried at cost and is not depreciated. Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price net of any discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes {other than those subsequently recovered
from the tax authoritles}, any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental
expenses, decommissioning costs, if any, and mleresl un burrbwings attributable to it up to the date it s ready for its intended
use. Cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date are shown under
capital work-in-progress.




SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED
NOTTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020
{Arrount in INR , unless otherwise stated)

2.3

2.4

2.5
(=)

Subsequent costs are included fn the asset’s carrying ameunt o recognized A% o separate assel, as appropriate, only when il s
probable that future economic benefits associated with the ftem will flow to the Company and the cost of the item ean be
measured rellably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when repalaced, Al
other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in witich they are incurrad,

Property, plant and equipment's residual vatues and useful lives are reviewed at each Balance Sheel date and changes, f any, aie
treated as changes In accounting estimate.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to contimie with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognized as at 1st April, 2018 measured as per the Indian GAAR and use that carying value as the deemed cost of the property,
plant and equipment,

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives
The Company depreciates Property, plant and equipments using the straight line method over thetr estimated useful lives as uadeor

Property, plant and equipment Useful Lives (in years)
Plant and Equipments 8
Furniture & Fixtures 8
Mator Vehicle 3
Office equipment 5
Electrical Installations 10
Computer 3

Based on the technical experts assessment of useful life, certain items of property plant and equipment are being depreciated over
useful lives different from the prescribed useful lives under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2012, Management beligves thal such
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, as appropriate,

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually identified and
separately recognised, Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Other Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization,

Transition to Ind AS
On transition ta Ind AS, the Company has etected to continue with the carrying value of all of its all intangible assets recognised as
at 1st April, 2018 measured as per the indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cast of the intangible assets,

The Company amartized intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method. The estimated useful
lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets Useful life

Computer Software 4 years

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment wheaever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Functional and presentatiun cunency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates ( the functlonal currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee {INR}, which is the Company’s

functignat”
%}




SYMNEGRA EMS LIMITED
NOTTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020
(Armount in INR , unless otherwise statec))

(b)

2.6

2.7

2.8

{a}

(b)

Transactions and balances

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchangs rale
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction, Gains/Lossos arsing out of fluciuation 1n
foreign exchange rate between the transaction date and settlement date are recognised in Lhe Statement of Profit and Lowss,

All monetary assets and liabilities in ferelgn currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate prevalling at the year end
and the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forolgn currency are translated using the exchange ratos at
the dates of the initial transactions.

Fair value measurement ‘
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derlvatives at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received Lo sell an asset or pald to transfer a Uabllity in an orderly transactiory between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the prosumption that the transaction Lo soll
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a} In the principal market for the asset or lability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market For the asset or lability accessible to the Company,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate In the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available Lo
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable Inpuws. The
Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for fair vatue measurement.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vatue measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

- Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 — Inputs for the assets or fiability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable fhputs),

Revenue Recognitian

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation by transferring
promised goods and services to the customer. The revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of
consideration received or receivable, and is net of discounts, allowances, returns, goods and services tax and amounts coliected on
behalf of third party. :

Finance Income
Interest Income is recognised on a basis of effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no
significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists,

Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for
the year.

Current income tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a {egally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences, being differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for alt deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied b'y the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable
right for such set off.

alisability.

LY




SYMEGRA EMS LIMITED
NOTIES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020
(Amount in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate Lo ftems that are recognisect in Gl
Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferrad tax ae also recogaised in Glher
Comprehensive Income or direatly In equity respectively.

{c}  Minimum Alternate tax ( MAT)
Minimum Alternate Tax credit 1s recognised as deferrod {ax asset onty when and 1o the extent there f5 convincing evidenee thal the
Company will pay normal income tax during the spoctfied period. Such asset Is roviewed at each Balance Sheel date i thi
carrying amount of the MAT credit asset 15 written down to the extent there is no longer a convineing evidence to the effect that
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

2.9 Leases

As a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office and factory premises, The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a loase If the conlract conveys the right Lo control
the use of an identified asset for a periad of time In exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys Lhe right 1o
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (4) the contract involves the use of an identified assel {1y the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the assot through the period of the lease and (1ii) the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU") and a corresponding lense
liability for all tease arrangements tn which 1t is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months of less (short-lerm
leases} and low vatue leases, For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments s an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and (ease payments have been classificd as
financing cash flows

Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA"} through Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rutes, 2019 and Companies
. {indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing {ease standard,
Ind A5 17 leases and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disciosure of leases for both lessees and lessors, It intreduces a single, on-balance sheel lease accounting model for lessees,

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the
modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to Surplus / {Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease fiability at the present value of the lease
payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, hut discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date
of initial application. The Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the cpening batance of Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as on April 1, 2019, '

2,10 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost {on weighted average basis) and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchases, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, tess the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realizable value of work in progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products, Raw
materials and other supplies held for use n the production of fimshed products are nat wrillen down below cost except in cases
where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed the net realizable value.

211 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any indication of
fmpairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets {s estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of
these assets exceeds their recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in
use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows ta their present value based on an appropriate pre-tax discount
rate t_cl_g__e@hmine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. When there is an indication

=

1 qf?ar‘_qi}m\g?){:- ent loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longe:’gw ave decreased, such reversal
fhyaTTTe = ; .

h
. Jrpaitent sy, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass, except in case g valied Esspts:
EE G Y
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2,12

2.13

2.14

{a)
(i}

{ii)

Provisions and contingent llabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obilgation (legal or constructive) as a result of & past evenl, g
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation,

The amount recognised as a provision fs the best estimate of the consideration required 1o settle the present oblgation &l the end
of the reporting period, taking Into account the risks and uncertaingles surrounding the ebligation, In the event the time vilue of
maney is material, provision is carried at the present value of the cash flows reculred Lo settle the obligation,

If the effect of the time value of money s material, provisions are discounted using a current pro-tax rate thal reflecls, whe
appropriate, the risks specific to the Hability, When discounting {5 used, the Increase in the provision due Lo the passage of tme &
recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arfsing from past events, the existence of which will bp
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whotly within the control of Lhe
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events, where it s either not probabte that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the cbligation or a rellabie estimate of the amount cannot be made, When there 15 a possible obligation ar a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow ¢f resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made,

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one ar more uncertain future events not wholly within the cantrel of the entity, A contingent asset Is disclosed,
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivatent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits net of bank overdraft
with an originat maturity of three months or iess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Financial assels

initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financiat
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Far purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in fotlowing categories:

a) at amortized cost; or

b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or

c} at fair vatue through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractuat terms of the cash
flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost, Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive ingome (FYOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FYQCH). Movements in the carrying amount are talken through other comprehensive income
(OCI), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previcusly
rocognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to Statement ol Profit and Luss and recugnized in other gains/ (losses). interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.
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<Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the eriterfa for amorthzed cost or FYOC! are measured at fair valug

i)

{iv)

{B)
{i)

T
a,
\_;L

through profit or loss. [nterest income from these financial assels is included §n other income,

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at Tair value, Eguity instruments which are hetd for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer In a business combination 1a which fd AS193 applies are ¢lassifiod
as at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other eguity Instruments, the Company may make an irevocabt @ etecion
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes 1 the falr vatue, The Company makes such eleclion on an
instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initlal recopghition and s frrovocadio,

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOC), then atl falr value changes on the instrument, exctuding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There fs no recycling of the amounts from OCI to PGL, even on sale of vestmenl. Howeviy,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity,

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at falr value with all changes recognized in the profit and
loss.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company appies expected credit loss (ECL) model Tor measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets,

fFor recognition of impairment {oss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not increased signiflcantly, 12.month ECL 15 used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, Ufetime ECL is used, If in subsequent years, credit
quatity of the instrument improves such that there is no tonger a significant increase {n credit risk since inftial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from ali possible default events over the expected life of a financlal
instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the tifetime ECL which resutts from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the year end.

ECL is the difference between ail contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original £IR, When estimating the cash flows, an
entity is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) aver the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument,

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payment is more than 30 days
past due.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal} recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense in the statement of profit
and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost is presented as an allowance, i.¢, as an integral part
of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance frem the gross carrying amount.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b} retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the
cash flows to one or more recipfents.

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if substantialty all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity has nat transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
awnership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized,

Financial labilities

Initial recognition and measurement,
Financial liabitities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortized
cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

-
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(Armiunt in INR , unless otherwise stated)

{H)

{iii)

(<)

(d)

(e}

2.15
(a)

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial Uabilities depends on their classification, as described holow!

Financial tiabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss Include financiat Habilivies held for trading and financial labilities clesignated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also classifiod a4 held for
trading unless they are designated as effoctive hedging Instruments, Gaing or losses on lablitios hold for trading are recognizsd in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the ENR method,
Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the IR
amortization process. Amortized cost {5 calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisttion and feess or costy
that are an integral part of the £IR, The EIR amortization is included as finance costs In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial tability is derecognized when the cbilgation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing labitity
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original tability and the
recognition of a new Uability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
as finance costs.

“

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined} instrument that alse includes a non-derivative host contract - with
the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instiument vary $n a way similar to a standatone derivative, Derivatives
embedded in all other host contract are separated if the econamic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.,

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss,

Derivative Financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are initialty recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a ret basis or realize the asset and settle the Uability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Empioyee Benefits
Short-term obligations

(i) All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits,

{b}

These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term
employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the
period.

Benefits such as salaries and wages etc. and the expected cost of bonus/ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the
employere renders the related services. ’

Defined Contribution schemes

(i} Company's cantribution to the provident fund and employee’s state insurance fund are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss

of the year when the contributions to the respective funds arc duc. There are ne other obligations other than the contribution
payable to the respective authorities.
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(i) Defined Benefit plans

(1ii}

2,16

2,17

2,18

The Company provides for the retfrement benefits In the form of Gratuity, Benefits payable to eligible employess of the GORPANY
with respect to gratulty i accounted for the on the basls of an actuarial valuation ag at the balancesheet date. The present value
of such abtigation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for the past service cost and fait value af plan
assets as at the balancesheet date through which the olligations are 1o be settled,

Remeasurements, comprising of acturfal gains and losses and the rewdrn on plan assets{excluding net interest) 1% reflected
immediately in the balancesheet with a charge/credit recogaised In Other Comprehensive Income {"0CIY) in the perind m wiiléh
they oceur,

Remeasurements are recognised In OCI 15 reflected immediately in Surplus / {Deficit) i the Staterment of Praft and Loss and 15 not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Other long term employes benefits

Company’s tiabilities towards compensated absences to employees which are expected to be avalled or encashed beyond 12 montly
from the end of the year are accrued on the basis of valuations ,as at the Balancesheet date.carried out by an independent actuary
using Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gains and (osses comprise experfence adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share s calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Compamy's earnings
per share is the net profit or loss for the year after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year,
The wefghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for ail the years presented is adjusted for events,
such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources,

For the purpese of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharehoiders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares. .

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing costs
also include exchange differeaces to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Lass except:
a} Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of assets that necessarily takes a substantiat period of
time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the ¢ost of such assets.

b) Expenses incurred on raising long term borrowings are amortised using effective interest rate method over the period of
borrowings.

Investment Income earned on the temporary investment of funds of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on guatifying
assels is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest decimals as per requirement of
Schedule 11 of the Act, untess otherwise stated.

A. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amount of assets and tiabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actuat results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
praspectively. information about assumptions, judgements and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2020 are as below ;

o
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{a)

(b}

(c

{d)

4.1

(a)

4,2
(@)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews the estimoted useful lives of property, plamt and
equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period, Useful tives of intangible assols i determined on the basis of
estimated benefits te be derived from use of such intangible assets, These reassessments may resuit [n change In the degreciation
/amortisation expense in future periods.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it 15 probable that taxabte proflt wil be asvailable
against which the losses can be utilized. Signiicant management Judgment (s required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognized, based upon the liely timing and the level of future taxable profits togother wilth future tax
planning strategies.

The Company neither have any taxable temporary difference nor any tix planning appoertunities avaitable that could partly suppen
the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assels, On this basis, the Company has determined that it cannot recognize doferved
tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

Actuarial Valuation )

The determination of Company’s lability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made Lhrough mdependont acluarial
valuation including determination of amounts to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in Qther Comprehensive
Incame. Such valuation depend upon assumptions determined after taking lato account discount rate, satary growth rate, expocted
rate of return, mortality and attrition rate. Information about such valuation is provided {n notes to the financial statements,

Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating units based on expected
future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating
results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

B. Ministry of Corporate affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There are neither aew
standards nor amendments to existing standards which are effective for the annual period beginning from Q1 Aprit 2620.

First time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements are the first set of Ind AS financial statements prepared by the Company. The Accounting policies set
out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, the comparative
information presented for the year ended March 31, 2019 and in the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1,
2018 (the Company's date of transition).

The Company has prepared opening Balance Sheet as per ind AS as of April 1, 2018 (transition date) by recognising all assets and
tiabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising ftems of assets or liabilities which are not permitted to be
recognised by Ind AS, reclassifying items from Previous GAAP to Ind AS as required, and applying Ind AS to measure the recognised
assets and liabilities,

Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS
Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the
retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has accordingly applied the following exemptions.

Deemed Cost

The Company has elected to continue with carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in its indian
GAAP financial statements as its deemed cost at the date of transition after making adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities.
This exemption can also be used for intangible assets coversd by Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets and investment properties.
Accordingly the management has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible
assets at their Indian GAAP carrying value.

Mandatory Exemption an first-time adoption of ind AS

Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the
same date in accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in.accounting policies), unless there is
o,l;j:eﬂctiv_e‘_,g\ii\dence that those estimates were in error. .

£
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(b)

(c)

Ind AS estimates as at 1st April, 2018 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in cenformity with Ind dan GAAD,
The Company made estimates for following items In accordance with ind AS at the date of transition ag these wera not raquiregd
under Indian GAAP:

(i} Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model,

(it) Fair valuation of compound financial instrument,

(ii) Effective interest rate used in calculation of security deposit and harrowings.,

Derecognition of financial assets and financial Habilities

A first-time adopter shoutd apply the derecegnition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively to transaclions
occurring on or after the date of transitlon, Therefore, If a first-time adopter derecognized now-derivative financial assets or non:
derivative financial Habilities under ts Indian GAAP as a result of a transaction that occurred Bofore the date of transitios, it
should not recognize those financial assets and Uabilities under ind AS (unless they quallfy for recognition as a result of 4 later
transaction or event), A first-time adopter that wants to apply the derecognition requirements in (hd AS 109, Financial ins truments,
retrospectively from a date of the entity's choosing may only do 0, provided that the Infermation needed to apialy hd A%
109,Financial instruments, to financial assets and financial Uabitities derecognized as a resutt of past transactions was obtainad at
the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognize provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of ransition to fnd AS,

Ctassification and measurement of financial assets .
Ind A5 101, First-time Adoption of Indfan Accounting Standards, requires an entity to assess classification and measuremont of
financial assets {investment in debt instruments) on the basis of the facts ang circumstances that exist at the date of transition tc




INR uniess otherwise stated)

4.3 Reconciliations

{a

—

Thefollowing reconciliations provides the effect of transition to Ind AS from Indlan GAAP In accardance with Ind AS 101 "First time

of Iadian Accounting Standards”:

Recincillation of equity as at date of transitlon 1st Aprll, 2018

T OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020

Adliprtion

Particulars

Notes

Previous GAAR *

“ind AS ad Justments

nd A

ASSIETS

Norrvcurrent assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Othrer financial assets
Nor-current tax assets {net)
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories

Financiat Assets

Trade receivables
Cashand cash equivalents
Bankbalances other than cash and cash equivalent
Loans

Other financial assets
Other current assets
Totalcurrent assets
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share capital
Other Equity

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current lizhilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial Liabitities
Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other financial liabitities
Other ligbitities
Provisions

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

th.

i,

ifl.

59,986,960 1,87,24,033 2,47,23,9%)
74,62,380 . 74,62,380
20,000 20,000
90,290 ‘ 90,290

1,35,71,630

1,87,25,033

3,22,96,66)

3,30,24,330 3,30,24,330
2,12,58,477 2,12,58,477
1,97,660 1,97,660
1,99,47,08% 1,99,47,085
1,586,000 1,58,000
4,231 4,231
87,16,776 87,16,776
8,33,06,559 . 8,33,06,569
9,68,78,189 1,87,2%,033 11,56,03,222
4,50,00,000 4,50,08,000
(3,05,15,052) (3,05,15,052)
1,44,84,948 - 1,44,84,948
- 1,42,05,018 1,42,05,018
4,37,506 (1,46,495) 2,91,011
4,37,506 1,40,58,5723 1,44,96,029
3,96,43,959 6,60,822 4,03,04,781
4,10,70,455 . 4,10,70,455
- 47,09,257 47,09,257
10,92,028 (8,50,064) 2,41,944
1,49,293 1,46,495 2,95,788
8,19,55,735 46,66,510 8,66,22,245
8,23,93,241 1,87,25,033 10,11,18,274
9,68,78,189 1,87,25,033 11,56,03,222

* The Previous GAAP figures have been rectassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation reguirements for the purpeses of this Note.
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{b) Reccmciliation of equity as at 31st March, 2019

Particulars Notes Previous GAAP * Ind AS Adjustments | Inel AS

ASSETS ' '

Nor-turrent assets

Property, plant and equipment fif, 42,95,763 1,40,56,600 T,81,52,16)
Caprial work-in-progress . .
Othe Intangible assets 2,01,693 2,070,693
Other financial assets 38,000 38,000
Nor-wrrent tax assets (net) 1,49,455 1,49,4%55
Defered tax assets (net} . L e
Totalnon-current assets 46,84,911 1,40,56,600 1,B7,41,511
Current assets

Inverntories 1,49,12,896 1,49,12,896
Financial Assets

Trade receivables 4,06,8%,014 . 4,006,81,014
Cashand cash equivalents 2,08,77,086 {2,06,26,104) 2,50,982
Bamk batances other than cash and cash equivalent . 2,11,69,499 2,11,69,499
Laans 83,000 83,000
Othercurrent assets 24,44,000 - (5,43,395) 19,00,605
Totalcurrent assets 7,89,97,9%6 - 7,89,97,996
TotaiAssets 8,36,82,907 1,40,56,600 9,77,29,507
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity Share capital 4,50,00,000 - 4,50,00,000
Other Equity {5,20,58,652) 5,80,427 (5,14,78,225)
Total equity {70,58,652) 5,80,427 {64,78,225)
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings i & iii - 2,85,68,334 2,85,68,334
Provisions i 4,64,557 {1,53,480) 311,077
Other liabilities - . -
Totatl non-current liabilities 4,64,557 2,84,14,854 2,88,79,411
Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings il. 6,%0,82,072 (1,94,17,836) 4,96,64,236
Trade Payables 1,%99,59,582 - 1,99,99,582
Other financiat liabilities iii. - 50,92,473 50,92,473
Other current liabitities 10,39,525 (7,66,798} 2,72,727
Provisions i. 1,55,823 1,53,480 3,09,303
Total current {iabilities 9,02,77,002 (1,49,38,681) 7,53,38,321
Total liabilities 9,07,41,559 1,34,76,173 10,42,17,732
Total Equity and Liabilities 8,36,82,907 1,40,56,600 | 9,77,39,507
* The Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this Note.
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{c) Re<nciliation of Total Comprehensive income for the year epded 315t March, 2019

{d

—

Particulars Notes | Previous GAAP* | Ind AS Adjustments Inel AS

Rewveenue from operations 21,91,28,470 1,587,753 21,86,70, 7147
Otter income 33,214,402 A,%7,753 37,799,185
Total Income 27,24,49,872 . 22,24,49,877
Expenses
Costof materials consumed 19,24,50,239 19,24,50,239
Purchase of Traded goods 13,58,089 13,568,080
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in (4,73,522) (4,73,%22)
progress
Employee benefits expense R 2,34,91,483 (1,30,613) 2,33,60,870
Finaace costs 1§ & i 38,94,342 18,85,639 57,79,981
Depreciation and amortisation expense i, 92,21,287 16,68,413 1,38,89,720
Other expenses fit, 1,40,47,884 {55,75,414) 84,72,470
Total expenses 24,39,89,802 8,48,045 24,48,37,847
Profit before tax (2,15,39,930) '(8,48,045) (2,23;87,975}
Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax : .
Adjustment of tax of earlier year 3,670 3,670
Profit for the year (2,15,43,600) (8,48,045) (2,23,91,645)
Other Comprehensive income iv
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains / (loss) on defined benefit plan i - (1,30,613) 1,30,613
Income tax relating to above - - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year - {1,30,613) 1,30,613
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {2,15,43,600) (9,78,658) {2,25,22,258)

¥ The Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this Note,

Reconciliation of Statement of Cashflow for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Particulars Indian GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flows {used in) operating activities (2,65,05,301) 44,49,310 {2,20,55,991;
Net cash flows from investing activities 10,98,118 11,26,104 22,24,222
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 2,54,60,505 (55,75,414) 1,98,85,091

* The Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confin

to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this Note.

®,
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(¢) Notes to first time adoption of Ind AS

De fined benefit liabilities

i. Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognized costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an
Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. U
me asurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a correspondin
to Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss through OCI.
Thus the employee benefit cost for the year ended 31 March 2019 is reduced by iINR 130,613/- and re-measurement gains/ |
berefit plans of the corresponding amount has been recognized in the OCl, net of taxes.

Loan from a Director

i, Under the Previous GAAP, there was no concept of fair valuation of financial liabilites. Under Ind AS, fair valuation has

g financial liabilities which majorly includes a loan received from a Director at a rate of interest which is below the marke ¢

valuation has been done as per the amortised cost method. This has resulted in the decrease in the value of financial liabilit¥ g ;

in the equity by an amount of INR 15,59,085/- as on March 31,2019. Further, the fair valuation has resulted in an increase in t:l‘;f? flnance c;ost
by an amount of INR 369,242/- and increase in the loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 by the like amount. . :

Leases
iii. Under the Previous GAAP, office premises taken on lease {operating lease) were accounted as per Accounting for leases by chalging r'ent
to the Statement of Profit and loss. :
Miristry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA"™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Compani&s (Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, trd AS ¥ lemes,
anc other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosu rg of {eases for
both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. i

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2018 and applied the standard'tjé-i le '
prospectively, Accordingly, the Company has elected to use the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount. Gf'ény prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the Balance Sheet immediately before the date of transition of Aprll 1, 2018
as the deemed cost of the right-of-use assets along with the value of the lease tiability at the date of transition to the Ind AS. ;

(iV) Other comprehensive income

The concept of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) did not exist under Indian GAAP,

&

i
:
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SYNEGRA EXS LIMITED
NOTES FOIRMNG PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020
(Amount In NR , unless otherwise stated)

8

10

11

12

13

O THER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT)

Particulars A% Al 315t March, 2020 | As at 3158 March, 2019 | As at 150 April, 7010
Security Deposits ' 18,000 38,000 10,400
Toti 38,000 31,000 20,000

NOW-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Particulars

As al 315t March, 2020

As at 315t March, 2019

Ag At 15t April, 2010

Adwvince income tax (net of provisions)

3,27,495

1,40, 455

90,290

Totl

o 3,27,495

1,49,458

90,200

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019 | As al 15t Aprll, 2018
Balances with statutory/Government authorities 98.88,237 . :
Total 98,688,237 M .

INVENTORIES (AT COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

As at 15t April, 2018

Rawmaterials and components
(including Goods-in-transit Rs.10,90,756/- (As at 31st March,2019 Rs,

NIL/-; As at 1st April,2018 Rs.18,49,287,/-)) 99, 44,695 1,37,85,398 2,92,99,028
Work-in-progress 1,04,11,354 5,75.687 31,403
Finished goods 2,306 . 70,762
Stores, spares and packing materials

(inclding Goods-in-transit NIL {As at 31st March,2019 NIL; As at 1st -

April, 2018 Rs,16,95,984/-}} 1,13,940 5,591,811 36,22,537
Total 2,04,72,294 1,49,12,896 3,30,24,330

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

Unsecured

-Comidered good (refer note below)
-Corsidered doubtful

Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

52,00,744

As at 31st March, 2019

4,06,81,014

As at 1st April, 2018

2,12,58,477

Total

52,00,744

4,06,81,014

2,12,58,477

Note
Receivable from related parties
-Digisol Systems Limited

3,91,58,665

2,10,46,386

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31ist March, 2019

As at 1st April, 2018

Dalances with banks:

On current accounts 47,593 2,34,296 1,89,060
Cashon hand 15,677 16,686 8,600
Total 63,270 2,50,982 1,97,660




SYNEGRA ENS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARGH, 2020

{Amount ire NR , unless otherwise stated)

14 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Particulars

T As at 315t March, 2020

Aé 'at' '3'1'51 Mareh, 2099

A at L5t Aprit, 2018

In Fixed deposit with maturity of more than 3 months but less than
12 months from Balance Sheet date*

Interest receivable on fixed deposit

2,12,64,61%
4,86,987

206,206,104
8,43,39%

19%,00,000
4,47 085

Total

2,17,51,602

2,11,6%,499

1,29,17,088

* Fired deposits are under lien with the banks as margin money against credit facility avatled by the Company,

15  LOANS (CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS)

Particulars As ot 315t March, 2020 | As at 3151 March, 2019 | As ot 151 April, 2010
Loan to Empioyees 1,27,000 53,000 Y B, 000
Totl 1,27,000 83,000 1,658,000

76  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 18t April, 2018

Advance to employees

11,359

As at 315t March, 2019

4,20

Total

11,359

4,231

17 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

As at 15t Aprlf, 2018

Prepaid expenses

2,36,230 2,07.621 3,59,999
Balance with government alrtharities 27,44,984 11,859,199 63,031,966
Adwvances to vendors 17,63,803 5,03,785 20,52,811
Total 47,45,017 19,00,605 87,16,776




SYNEGR.AEMS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 395t MARCH, 2020

{Amount in INR , unless otherwise stated)

18 ECUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particylars

As al
315t March 2020

As at
Atst March 2019

T
150 April 2010

Awustharized Share Capitai

Eq uity shares

Iss wed, subscribed and pald up

4, 50,000 (Previous year: 4,500,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/. each

4,540,000 (Previous year: 4,500,000} equity shares of Rs, 10/ each fuily patd up

4,50,00,000

4,50,00,000

4, 50,00,000

4,50,00,000 |

A4,50,00,000

50,60, 600

A,50,00,000

4,450,00,000

Ll [l S;(LUUHU()U

Total

4,60,00,000

4,50,00,000

4, 50,00,000

{a} Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the and of the yoar

A5 at As at As at
Particulars 315t March 2020 | 395t March 2019 | 1st April 2016
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 15,00,000 4%5,00,000 A5,00,000
Add: Issued during the year . :
Less: Bought back during the year . : .
Outstanding at the end of the year 45,00,000 45,00,000 4%,00,000

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only ane class of Equily shares having a par value of Rs, 10/+ per share, Each holder of Equity shares 15 entilied 1o one vole per share and

each Equity share carries an equal right to dividend,

In the event of liquidation, the shareholders are eligible Lo receive the remaining assels of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, n

proportion to their shareholdings.

(©)

Shares held by the holding company:

As at
31st March 2020

As al
J1st March 2019

As at
15t April 2018

smartlink Holdings Limited, the holding company

4,50,00,000

4,500,000 (Previous year: 4,500,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- gach, fully paid up 4,50,00,000 4,50,00,000
{d} Details of shares heid by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at31st March 2020 As at3tst March 2019 As at 1st April, 2018
Farticulars Number of [ % of holding | Number of | % of holding in % of hotding in
MNumber of shares
shares in the class shares the class the class
Name of the shareholder
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fuily paid
Smartiink Holdings Limited 45,00,000 100% 45,00,000 100.00% 45,00,000 100%

As per records of the Company, inctuding its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
Interest, the above shareholding represents both legat and beneficial ownerships of shares.

19 QTHER EQUITY

A. Capital Contribution *

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 | st April 2018
Opening balance 15,59,085 -
Add: Additions during the year 36,25,415 15,569,085
Closing balance 51,84,500 15,59,085

B, FVTOCI reserve on defined benefits (net of tax)*

* The Total Capital contribution of Rs. 51,84,500/- is on account of loan from Director at a lower rate than the market rate of interest,

Particulars As at As at As at
3tst March 2020 | 31st March 2619 | tst April 2018
Cpening balance (1,30,613) -
Add: Addition during the year (6,10,686) 1,30,613)
Closing halance (7,41,299) {1,30,613)

* This represents remeasyrements, comprising of arturial gains and losses and the return on plan as

benefit plans

C. Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss

sets (excluding net interest) on emipluyee defined

Particulars

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

As at
1st April 2018

Opening balance

N o
Add: Net Profit / (Loss’(g%é}gam

AN

{5.29,06,697}

(3,05,15,052)

OA {4,38,90,277) (2,23,91,645)
Closing balance ~ /4 37 NN i TR (9,67,96,974)|  (5,29,06,697)| (3,05,15,052)
/1%y YA e f et
|Total Other Equityf{ =] Dl j =T s | 92353773 (5,14,78,225)  (3,05,15,052))
o) # '




SYNEGRAEMS LIMITED
NOTES F CRMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020
{Amount i INR , unless otherwise stated)

20

21

22

23

BORROWINGS (NON CURRENT)

Particulars

As at J1st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

As at 15t A;‘;NI,'?;{HB

Un secured

Loan from director {Refer footnote to note 22)
Leae liability

48,82, 109

1,88,10,157
97,58,177

142,085,018

Total

18,52,109

2,05,68,334

1,42,00,018

PRCVISIONS (NON -CURRENT)

Particulars As ot 315k March, 2020 [ As at 31st March, 2019 | As at 15t April, 2018
Pronision for gratuity (funded) 2,106,577 : :
Proviston for leave encashment (unfunded) 3,61,208 3,111,077 2,0,011
Total 5,77,845 311,077 2,91,011
BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 318t March, 2019

As at 15t Aprli, 2014

Borrowings measured at Amortised Cost
Secured
Bank overdraft

Unsecured
Loanfrom director

1,98,62,269

11,22,86,77%

1,90,82,072

3,05,82, 164

96,43,959

3,06,60,822

Total

13,21,49,044

4,96,64,236

4,03,04,781

Foot-note:
Secured Loan:

Overdraft with banks are secured, by a charge ranking pari passu, by way of hypothecation of all present and future current assets and lien on Fixeg

Deposit.

Unsecured Loan

Loean from Director taken for a tenure of 90 days with an option to rotl over for further 4 term of 90 days each,

TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019 | As at 1st April, 2018
Total cutstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises” . 10,368 8,40,041
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium 1,82,73,056 1,99,89,214 4,02,30,414
enterprises
Total 1,82,73,056 1,99,99,582 4,10,70,455

*The disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have been made in respect of such vendors to the extent they
could be identified as micro and smalt enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company,

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019
Qutstanding principal amount and interest as cn 31st March,
- Principal Amount ) 10,368
- Interest due thereon 1,226
Amount of interest paid along with the amounts of payment made beyond 1,226
the appointed day
Amount of interest due and payable {where the principal has already
been paid but interest has not been paid)
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 1,226

accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are

actually paid for the purpog_ﬂ%ll\oviance as a deductible expenditure
der section 2 At
un ction 30ftl%5§:5\50ﬁ )




SYNEGRAEMS LIMITED

NOTES F GRMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 7020

{Amount i INR , unless otherwise stated)

24 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

Partlculars

As st 3150 March, 2019

As nb 15t Aordl, 2018

Interest accrued on delayed payment Lo MSME (Refer Note 23)
Security deposits
Lease Hability

As al 315t March, 2020

53,38,164

1,226
183,408

49,07,839

1,03, A0
ARG

Total

53,38,164

“80,67,473

AT ,00, 087

25 OT HER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars

‘As at 31sl March, 2020

As at 315t March, 2019

As al sl April, 2098

Statutory dues payable 313,219 2,712,727 £,A7,964
Adwvance fram Customers 73,73,173 . o
Total 76,86,392 2,792,127 _ 241,96

25 PROVISIONS (CURRENT)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

As at 15t Aprll, 2016

Provision for gratuity (funded) 11,172 - -
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 1,313,198 3,09,303 2,945,768
Total ' 1,44,370 3,089,303 2,985,788




SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020
(Amount 13 INR , unless otherwise stated)

27

28

29

30

kY

REYENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars

For the Year Ended
3st March , 2020

For the Year Ended
350 March |, 2019

Sale of manufactured products 3,44,49,771 21,57,62,299
Sale of Traded products . 18,64,000
Sewvice Repalr Income 4,774,009 10,435
Service Job Work 17,172,862 6,599,972
Sale of Scrap 156, 288 ) 3,774,011
Total 3,66,94,050 31,86,70,717
For the Year Encled For the Year Ended
Geographical markets 395t March , 2020 | 31t Mareh , 2019
Exports 1,05, 39,407 14,50 424
Domestic 2,61,55,583 21,72,20,293
Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,66,94,990 21,86, 70,717

OTHER INCOME

Particutars

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2020

For the Year Ended
31st March |, 2019

Interest income

- on fixed deposits designated at amortized cost 32,148,347 13,58,590
Interest on income tax refund 6,895 1,520
Sundry balances written back ! 4,57,753
Fair value gain on sate of current investments 19,345
Foreign exchange fluctuation - 7,318,947
Gain on sale/disposat of property plant and equipment 2,51,205 12,00,000
Miscellaneous income 2,93,304 -

Total 37.99,751 37,79,185

COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2020

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2019

Raw Material

3,95,72,251

19,24,50,239

Total

3,95,72,251

19,24,50,239

PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particutars 31st March , 2020 31t March , 2019
Traded goods - 13,58,089
Total . 13,58,089

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2020

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2019

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished goods - 70,762
Work-in-progress 5,75.687 31,403
5,75,687 1,02,165
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 2,305 -
Work-in-progress 1,04,11,354 5,75,687
1,04,13,659 5,75,687
Net (increase) in inventories (4,73,522)

(98,37,972)

NS
)




SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED
NOTES FCRMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020
{Amount niNR , unless otherwise stated)

k¥4

33

34

35

EAPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars

For the Year Ended
21sl Mareh , 2020

for the Year Ended

31t March, 2019

Salaries, allowances, bonus and ex-gratia 2,19,07,144 210,260,713
C oatribution to Provident and other funds 12,21, 558 9,.34,144
Caontribution to Gratuity fund 1,996,477 1,774,428
Steff welfare and other employee expenses G, 78,249 12,265,785
T otal 7,43,03,4%8 7,44,60,870

FINANCE COSTS

Particulars

For the Year Ended
315t March , 2020

For the Year Ended
315t March , 2019

Invterest on borrowing 17,08,201 10,1 ,606
Interest on lease liability 11,29.670 15,16,397
Interest on unsecured loan from director 84, 84,294 12.58,967
tnterest on delayed payment of Income tax 3 1,168
Interest on others 5,262 1,843
Total 1,13,27,430 57,79,981

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2020

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2019

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 95,53,269 63,80,783
Armortisation on Intangible Assets 62,190 75,08,937
Total 96,15,459 1,38,89,720

OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2020

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2019

Consumption of store and spares
Repairs and maintenance expenses

Machinery

QOthers

Conveyance and travelling expenses
Communication Cost
Insurance charges
Bank charges and commission
Legal and professional charges
Rates and Taxes
membership and subscription
Courier Expenses
Foreign exchange fluctuation
Bad debts written off
Auditor's Remuneration®
Computer consumabtes, software & maintenance charges
Director's fees
Office expenses
Power and fuel
Annual maintenance charges
Misce{laneous expenses
Total other expenses

84,157 4,54,09
3,69,128 5,26,920
4,76,359 81,497
8,62,971 5,25.819
1,36,028 1,46,955
6,07,202 6,73,215
2,84,147 3,18,113

17,38,993 5,36,692
41,262 2,75,250
31,526 60,272

; 630
3,00,411
5,002 -
2,16,254 2,03,020
1,34,917 91,526
8,00,000 9,50,000
3,07.181 2,07,801
21,56,280 28,77,065
4,61,801 4,52,428
1,90,803 91,156
94,04,422 84,72,470

*Note : The following 15 the break-up ot Auditor's remuneration (excluding input credit of GST availed, if any)

Particulars

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2019

As auditor:

J1st-March , 2020

Statutory audit *i2,00,000 2,00,000
In other capacity: - A
Reimbursement of e é’n’:?gfs???;?‘ 16,254 3,020
/%- [t O\
T 0,
2,003,020

Totel %7 NeA n




SYNEGRLAEMS LIMITED

NOTES FFORMING PART OF THE #FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 115t MARCH, 2020

{Amount in INR , untess otherwlse stated)

36 DXEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET) 1 TAX EXPENSE

Particulars

he &L 8150 March, 3030

As at 15t Marc, 2019

(A} D eferred tax relates to the following:

D eferred tax assets

Gnproperty, plant and equipment
Onlarry forward losses

+ Business loss

+ Umabsorbed depreciation
Provision for slow moving stock
Onothers

Deferred tax Habilitles
Onproperty, plant and equipment

Delerred tax asset
Less: Deferred tax asset not recognized
Deferred tax asset, net

1,85,00,743
72,99,626
1,149,548
1,79,33)

45,6111

99,93,570
27.91,145
729329
1,82, 744

LERTAEY

66,00,82Y
16,069,154
476,840
4,10, 4

£,63,9% 300

1,7%,58,008

{27,480)

1,22,61,058

(27,480)

2,63,07,820
2,63,67.420

1,79,58,008
1,79,58,008

1,242,010
1,82,01,048

3

Iv absence of reasonable certainty of taxable Income in future years, during the year ended 31 March 2020, and 115t March, 2019, the Company has crealed
deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreclation and other items to the extent of deferred tax Liability,

(B) Re<ognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax Hability in balance sheat

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liabilities

(27,480)
27,480

As at 15t April, 2018

Deferred tax assets/ (liabRities), net

(C) Deferred tax assets/ (lfabilities) to be recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March , 2020

For the Year Ended
3tst March, 2019

Tax liability
Tax asset

(D) Year wise details of brought forward losses as per income tax returns filled and expiry for claiming the losses

is as follows:

Assessment Year

Business Loss

Last Assessment Year for

Unabsorbed

*Depreciation losses are available for offset in the future years for an indefinite period

claim Depreciation*
201819 60,18,820 2026-27 2,55,27,542
2019-20 47,17,04C 2027-28 1,42,61,633
Total 1,07,35,860 3,97,89,175




SYNEGRA M5 LIMITED

NOTES FOYRMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED M6t MARGH, 2010

(Amount 1mINR |, yntess otherwise stated)

37 EARNNGS / LOSS PER SHARE

Basic carnings /(loss) per share amounts are calcilnted by dividing the profit/loss for the yeie atirilbutable 1o aquity hitders by |

outstinding during the year,

The_fillowing reflects the income and share dala used in the basic and diluled £75 conuatations:

Partleutars

Fof the Yoar Endad
3150 Macch , 2020

Far the Yaar Ended
396 March , 2019

Ordinary equity shargholders
{Lossjattributable to ordinary equity holders

14.08,90.277)

(223,064

e walihted average aundsar of gouily shives

Welghted average number of equity shares for basic EPS A4, 00,000 A4, 00,000
Focer Value per share 145,00 10,00
Basic earnings per share (INR) (9.749) (4.98)
Dilut'ed earnings per share (INR} 9.79) (4,24
38 CON TINGENT LIABILITIES
Thereare No contingent labititles to be disclosed as at March 31, 2020, March 31, 2016 and Al 01, 2018,
39 CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
As at As oy 'As at

Particulars

J1st March, 2020

318t March, 201%

st Aprl, 2010

Capital Commitments

41}

Other Commitments - Non-cancellation (ease llabilities (Refer Note

1,11,50,827

4,711,010, 8%
1,07.20.211

2,83,01,0%4

40 EMPELGYEE BENEFITS

(A} Defined Contribution Plans

Duringthe year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Stalement of Profl and Loss -

Particulars

For the Yeur Ended
3tst March , 2020

For the Year Ended
315t March , 2019

Employers® Cantribution to Provident Fund and Employee Slate 13,411,558 9.14,144
tnsurance (Refer Note 32)
{B) Defined benefit plans
4) Gratuity payable to employees
As at As at As at

Partlculars

315t March, 2020

}st March, 2019

15t April, 2018

i} Actuarlal assumptions
Discount rate {per annum)
Rate of increase {n Salary

Attrition rate
Mortality table used

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Interest ¢ost

Past service cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial {gain)/ loss on obligations

Present value of obligation at the end of the year*

iil) Change in the fair value of plan assets:
Opening fair value of plan assets

Adjustment to opening fair value of asset,
Interest Income

Contributions by employer

Benefits paid

Return on plan assets excluding interest income
Closing fair value of plan assets

Expected average remaining werking lives of employees {years}

1) Changes in the present value of defined benefit ohligation

6.60%
5.00%
14,28
9.00%
IALM (2012-14) Uit,

7.606%
5.00%
14.90
9.00%
IALM (2006-08) UIL.

7.04%
4§.00%
16.01
4.00%
TALM (200608} UL

*Included in provision for employee benefits (Refer note 21 and 26)

42,77,224 37,496,160 3%,39,680
326,779 2.87.046 2.14,765

: . 3,52,000
2,09.906 1,94.724 2,08,446
(21,29.876) (62.308) (58.877)
507,553 61,002 {3.59,8%4)
31,91,586 42,77,224 37,964,160
42,78,147 35,93,210 37,158,775
77.022 33,714 34,922
3,40,208 3,08.112 2,51,47%
5,01,469 75,000 75,409
(21,29,876) (6Z,308) {58.877)
(1.03,133) (69.611) (25,494)
29,63,837 42,78,147 39,93,210

iv} Expense recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss

For the Year Ended
J1st March , 2020

Far the Year Ended
315t Maich | 2019

Current service cost 2,09,906 1,94,724
Past service cost - -

Interest cost{net} (13,429) (20,496)
Total expenses recognized in the Statement Profit and Loss* 1,74,228

‘Included in Employee benefity expense (Refer Note 32).

i




SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

NOTES FOMMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARGH, 2020

{Amount 1, NR , unless otherwise stated)

Partlculars

For the Yuar Eneled
314t Mareh , 2000

For the Year Bidod
3181 Margh , 2009

v} E>pense recognized In Other comprehensive ncome

41 LEASES
(A) Operating leases where Company Is a lessee:

The Company has entered into tease transactions mainly for teasing of office premise for pertods between 3 Lo 6 years. The \erms of lease nclude renewal, cancollation and
Increase in rents in future period, which are in line with general inflation and terms of cancellation. The amount with respect to cperating leases in accordance with ind AS 136 s

as follows:

1. Right-of-use assets

Actuazrial (galmy / loss on Cbligation for the period 07550 01,002
Retesmon plan assets excluging Interest Income 1,03, 1) 9,011
Net actuarial {gains) / tesses recognised in OCI 4,10,686 1,430,011
vl) Assets and llabilitles recognlzad in the Balance Sheet A al As at Al al
S5t March, 2020 6l March, 2019 14t Apri, 2018
Present value of unfunded obligation as at the end of the year 1,91, 45380 AL 37.90,140
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 29,63,837 A, 70047 3080290
Fund ed Status (Surplus / (Deficit)) (2,272,710 043 1,97,0%0
Net asset 7 (llability) recognized in Balance Sheet* (2,27,749) R 1,%7,060
*IncLusded in provision for employee benclits {Reler note 24 and 16) o
vil) Expected contribution to the fund in the next year is INR 2,084,523/
vIil) Aguantltative sensltivity anatysis for signlficant assumptlon as at 315t March, 2020 1% as shown helow:
Impacton defined benefit obligation
Discount rate Amount
1% increase 28, 20,056
1% decrease 36,18, 314
Rate of Increase in salary Amount
1% increase 36,20,059
1% dedease 28,18,190
1x) Maturity profile of defined beneflt oblfgation
Year As at As at
315t March, 2020 st March, 2019
Apr 2010- Mar 2021 11,172 22,347
Apr 20U1- Mar 2022 12,850 25,456
Apr 2002 Mar 2023 1,24,578 5,378
Apr 2013 Mar 2024 73.904 1,411,464
Apr 2024 Mar 2025 20,798 3,84.284
Apr 2015 onwards 10,76,699 32,46,036

c. Later than five years

Y

1,11,50,827 ]

Particulars Amount
Balance as at 1 April, 2018 1,87,25,033
Additions .
Deletion .
Depreciation 46,68,433
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 1,40,56,600
Additions -
Deletion R
Depreciation 46,94,084
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 93,62,516
Ii. Lease (iabitities

Particulars Amaunt
Balance as at 1 April, 2018 1,87.25,033
Additions -
Lease Payments 40.59.017
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 1,46.66,016
Additions .
Lease Payments 44,45,743
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 1,02,20,273
lii. Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 1st April, 2018
Current Lease Liabilities 53.38.164 49,07,839 45,20,015
Non-current Lease Liabilities 48,82,109 97,58,177 1,42,05,018
lv. MalutTly ahdlysls of lease Habilitles {Lash Uuttlow)
7 Particulars As at As at As at
31st Mmarch, 2020 31ist March, 2019 1st April, 2018

a. Not later than one year 55,75.414 55,795,414 55,75,414
b. Later than one year and not late) 55,75,414

1,67,26,241




SYHEGRA EMS LIMITED :
NOTES FO'RMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020
{Amount (1 INR , unless otherwise stated)

¥, Dther details

Particulars

For the Year Endegt | For the Year Ended

J1st March , 2020 3

13t March , 2019

Amounts recognised in statement of Profit and Loss account - Inlerest on Lease Liabilities
Ampunts recognised in statement of Cash Flows - Total Cash

11,239,670
(59,7541

19,16,397
(39,75,414)

outlflow for teases

vl, Salient features of lease

1. The lease term is for a definite period with no unconditional right with the Company to extend the lease period,

2. The lease agreements provide for an escalation in lease rent,

3. The agreements provide for a subleasing of the leased land with prior approval of the lessor,

4. The agreements provide for renewal option of the lease perlod. The option Lo be exercised wilhin the time stipulated In e lpase ngreemeants,

42 RELA TED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

A} Namess of related parties and description of relationship as Identified and certlfied by the Company:
Holding Company
Smarttink Holdings Limited

Fellow Subsidiary
Digisol Systems Limited
Telesrmart 5C5 Limited

Key Management Personnel {KMP)
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik - Director
Mr. Natarajan Sankara - Director (upto December 31, 2819)
- Whole-time Director and CLO {w.e.f January 01, 2020)
Mr.K M Gaonkar - Non-Executive Director
Mr.Bhanubhai Patel - Non-Executive Director
Mr,NItin Kuncolienkar - Non-Executive Director
Mr.Pradeep Pande - Non-Executive Director

{B) Transactions with related party during the year are as follows:
Mature of transactions Halding Company Fellow Subsidiary Key Ag:r::gsment Total
Loan from Director
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 4,00,00,000 6,00,00,000
. {2,00,00,000) {2,00,00,000)
Interest on Loan
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 84,84,294 84,84, 204
[32,58,967) {32,18,967)
Sale of Manufactured Products
Digisol Systems Limited 1,41,67.515 1,41,67,514
20,27,24,715) (20,27,24,7134)
Sales of Raw-Materials
Digisol Systems Limited - 7,11,867 - 7.11,867
Purchase of Raw-Material
Digisol Systems Limited . . .
{1,65,340) - (1,6%, 340}
Managerial Remuneration
Mr. Natarajan Sankara - . 9,88,206 4.88.706
Director sitting fees
Mr. K M Gaonkar . - 2,00,000 2,00,000
- - {2,00,000) {2,00,000)
Mr. Bhanubhai Patel - - 2,00,000 2,00,000
(2.00,000) (2,00,000)
Mr. Nitin Kuncolienkar . . 1,506,000 1.50,000
(2,50,000) {2,50,000)
Mr. Pradeep Pande . E 1,50,000 1,50,000
{2,00,000) {2.00,000;
Mr. Natarajan Sankara - - 1,00,000 1,00,000
(1,00,000) {1,00,000)
Repair & Maintenance -Others
Digisol Systems Limited - 76,909 - 76,909
- {25,150} - {25.150)
Rent Expense ’
Smartlink Holdings Limited * 55,75,414 - 35,75,414
(55,75,414) - {55.,75,414)
Electricity - Factory
Telesmart SC$ Limited 6,68,032
{5.47,591)




SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020
{Amount fn INR , unless otherwise stated)

Nature of transactfons Holddlng Comppany

Feltow Subsldiary

Key Management

Parson

Tolal

Amounts due to / due fram as at the year end
Amount dug from
Diglscl Systems Limited

Ameunt due to
Smartlink Holdings Limited 4,004

i5,01,787)

Mr. Kamalaksha R, Nalk

(1,94, 56,665)

19, 22,086,771
{4.93,92,321)

ERATLIETET

EER TR
{'h01. 71

V22 46.77%
(1,843,092, 921)

Figures in brackets are for the previous year
43 SEGMENT REPORTING
financlal performance and position of the Company, and make strategic decisions,

primarily assessed as a single reportable operating segment in accordance with nd AS 108 by the CORM,

The information based on geographical areas In relatlon to revenue and non-current assets are ay below!
(A} Revenue from operations

For the Year Ended

Particulars 318t Morch, 2020

For the Year ndued
319 March, 2019

Within India 4.01,55,583 41,74,10,293
Cutside India 1,0%,39,407 14,540,424
Total 1,66,94,990 21,86,70,717

(B} Non-current aperating assets
All non-current assets other than financial Instruments, deferred tax assels of the company are localed In India

(€) Details of customers contributing to more than 10% of total revenue are os below

For the Year Ended

Name 315t March, 2020

For the Yoar Ended
31st March, 2019

Customer A 1,47,74,047 20,27,24,73
fustomer B 1,01,06,051 :
Customer C 61,25,2923 93.67.682

44 FAIR YALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A. Accounting classification and fair vaives

B. Measurement of fair value

thar in a forced or tiquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair vaiues;

their carrying amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these Instruments.

amount

inctusion of unobservable inputs including own and counterparty credit risk,

4

e

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The foltowing table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financiat labilities, including thelr (e
value infermation for financial assets and financial liabililies nol measured at fair value If the carrying amount is & reasonabte approximation of falr value,

The Director of the Company acts as the ¢hief opersting decislon maker (CODM) of {he Company In accordance with Oporating Segmist (Ing AS 108), for purpose of assessing the
The Company’s busingss activities are mainty retaled 1o developing, manufac luring, inieling,
dlstributing and servicing networking products. These networking products are sold Lo distributors, Qriginal Equipment Manufaciurers SOEM'S) and System Integeat or (51) which e

vels i the fair value hierarchy, It does not include falr
The fair values of the financial assets and labilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current Lransaclion betwaeen willing parties, other

1. Fair value of cash, bank balances, short-term deposits, trade and other short-term recelvables, Lrade payables, other current labititias and other financial liabllities approximate

2.The fair value of non-current financial assets comprising of term deposits at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate {£iR) are not significantly different from Lhe carrying

3.The fair value of borrowings are calculated based on cash flows discounted using a currant lending rate. They are classified at tevel 3 in the fair value hierarchy due Lo the
The fair value of financiat instruments as referred to above have been classified into three categories depending on the inpuls used in the valuation technique, The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements),

Level 1- Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using gquoted prices, This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds that have quoted price, The fair
value of all equity instrurnents which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting pariod.

sLevel 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable markel
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are chservable, the instrument is included in tevel 2,

+sLevel 3 - if one or more of the significant inputs is not basad on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilities

Particulars Fair value hierarchy

As at
31st March, 2020

315t March, 2019

As at

As at

1st April, 2018

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Level

Other financial assets
Financial liabilftles measured at amartized cost
Non current borrowings
Current borrowings
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Trade receivables Level 3 52,00,744
Cash and cash equivalents Level 3 v, 63270
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivatent Level 3 2,17.51,602
Loans Level 3 1.}'?-000

A 7N

49,359

™,
<_48,82.109

13727, 49,044
A 3‘.%73,056
/3838164

4,06,81,014
2,50,982
2,11,69,499
83,000
38,000

2,85,68,334
4,96,64,236
1,99,99,582

50.92,473

2,12,58.477
1,997,660
1,99,47.085
1,58,000
2423

1,42,05.018
4,03,04,781
4,10,70,455

47,09.257

There have been no transfers

/




SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR £HDED 315t MARCH, 2020
{Amount SnINR |, unless otherwise stated)

46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Cempany is exposed to various fnancial risks, These risky o citegorfzed (0Lo markel risk, credil fish and Lliguidily visk, The Company's risk management s courding i By Ebe
Doard of Directors and focuses on securing long Lerm and shorl Lerm cash flows, The Campany des nol engige n Lrading of financiat assels for speculative porpoesss,

(A) Marlet risk )
Martcet risk is the risk that the fale value of future cash fows of a Nnanclal instrument wiil Muctunte becawse of chimges Iy markat peices, Markel rish conyprises ivee Ly 6 Fidid
Interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risi, such ay Uity price risik and commodity rish, Financial instruments atfected by malet rish Include borrow ings anid discivilive
financial instruments,

{1} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Nows of a financlal Instroment wilh fluciuate because of changss i make erest rates, The Comgany 2686 0ol lisve
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates a5 the Company's leng=term debt obligations dre with {Ixed mlorest riteg.

{#) Forelgn currency risk

Forefgn currency risk is the risk that the fair vatue or future cash fows of o flasncial fnstrument wilt flucluale becoue of changes i forelgn exthange ratexs, This Company's
exposure ta the risk of changes in foreign exchange rites relates primarily 10 the Company's operating actlvities {when revenue or oxprastt 15 denominated in s different currengy
from the Company's functional currency).

{a) The Company's exposure to foreign currency rish at ihe end of the year is as follows

Particulars Currency Ao al As at At nl
315l March, 2020 31sl March, 2019 Tt Aprid, 2010
Trade Payables INR 91,01, 11 101,446,997 LA 0440
UsD 140,200 2,33.441 00817

(b) Forelgn Currency Sensitivity
The foliowing table details the Company's sensitivity Lo a INR 1 incresse and decrease against the US Doltar, INR 1 (5 Lhe sensitivity used when reporting forelgn curepngy rigk
internatly to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change n fareign exchange rates, The sensitivily anadysis includes only

net outstanding foreign currency denominated monelary items and adjusts their translation al the perlod end for a INR 1 changg In forelgn currency rales,

As at Ab at
Partlculars st March, 2020 T80 March, 2014
Impact of INR 1 strengthening - Decrease (n Loss 120,260 20334494
Impact of INR 1 weakening - Increase In loss 1,20,260 2,103,404

(B} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company il a customer or counterparty to a financlal Instrument falis to mee

the Company's receivables from customers,
The carrying amounts of financial assets represents maximum

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit {imfts and continuously monitoring the credilworthiness of custome
in the normat course of business, The Company estabilshes an allowance for doubtful debts and Impairment that repre

other receivables,

However, the credit risk arising on cash and cash equlvalents Is limited as the Company Invest in deposits with banks and financ

repayment capacity.

Trade receivables

Summary of the Campany's exposure to credit risk by age of lhe outstanding from various customers is as (otiows:

L ils contractual obligations, and arlses principally trom

rs tn which the Company grants credit (ermy
sents ils estimate of Incurred losses in respeat of trade and

al institution with credil ratings and strongy

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 1st Aprll, 2018
Not Due 16,39,055 2,85,63,065 2,12,58,477
Past due 1 -180 days 35,61,689 1,21,17,049
Past due for more than 180 days . .

(C) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to mest its financial obli

possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its ¢

iabilities when due.

The table below summarizes the maturity prefile of the Company’s financiai liabilities:

eations as Lhey become due, The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as

Particulars Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 year to More than Total
5 years 5 years
As at 31st March, 2020
Short term borrowings 13,21,49,044 - - 13,21,49,044
f Long-term borrowings . 48,82,109 48,82,109
| Trade payables 1,82,73,056 . . 1,82,73,056
| Other financial liabilities 13,93,854 39,44,310 . 53,38,104
15,18,15,954 39,44,310 48,82,109 - 16,06,42,373
As at 31st March, 2019
Short term borrowings 4,96,64,234 4,96.64,236
Long-term borrowings - 2,85.68,334 2,85,68,334
Trade payables 1,95.99,582 - - 1.99.99,582
Other financia! liability 15,78,488 35,13.985 - 50,92,473
7,12,42,306 35,13,985 2,85,68,334 - iy, 10,33,24,625
RN
As at 1st April, 2018 ’ T %,
short term bormawings TR O e 4,03,04,781 4,83,04,781
Lang-term borrowings . O - 1,42,05,018 %\ _1,4%\05,018
Trade payables 3 N 4,10,70,435 - Ay {[ SN 410,70.455
Other financial liabilities [/ &2 'Z\ 15,83,096 31,26,161 - [ Skl 47,089,257
= 8,29,58,312 A 31,26,161 1,42,05,6181 L+ 1 - L }A0,02,89,511 |
(%) p

&

" 5
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020

(Amount iTNR |, unless otherwlse stated)

47 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital Includes issued equily capital and sl otier auily reservis At
priovary objective of the Company's capital management 15 to safeguard t

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in Hght of chinges
requrirments of the financial covenants. To mainlatn or ad)ust the caphal

shareholders or Issue fresh shares,

The Company manitors capltal using a raslo of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘equity's For this purpose, bdjusted nel debl is delined as Halbilitiey, COMPUISING itenas

barrowings less cash and cash equivaleats. Equity comprises all componnts of eqully Including share premium ang aft

holders,

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio are as fotlows.

butabli Lo the equily helders of (1w Ganigigny, ¥l
he Company's alsility Lo remai is b golng concern and maxindse the shareholdor valug,

Iy G onomic conditong, annual operating plans, lonyg term and other SUEE Riii; alang and
Sthucture, e Company may adjusl it4 dividend paymient 1alio Lo shareholder. ratsji wpitil 1o

L hearisg laing s
other equity roserves attribotable tes lhe equily sl

Partfaulars At al . As ot Alal

315t March, 2020 st March, 2019 180 April, 2015
Equity {5 4,4%0,00,000 4,50,00,000 4,500,000
Borrowings 13,70,11,16] 182.52,570 H,45,00,750
Less: <ash and cash eguivalents 6J,270 250,982 1,457,600
Adjusted Net Debt (1) 13,69,67, BEY 7,79,01,588 b,43,12,109
Adjusted Net Debt teo Equity ratio (1)/ (4} 0% 173% 121%

No material changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 315t March, 2020, 18t March, 2019 and 1st Aprll, 2618,

48 The Company has incurred losses of INR 4,38,90,277/- (previous year INR 2,23,9%,0d5/+) durlng the year ended March 11, 2020 and as on date, has accumutiled fos of (MR
9,67,96,974/- (previous year INR 5,29,06,697/-). Further, the Company's net warth Is completely eroded ey on dite, Howovor, 1he management hig reasonable

on the estimates of future cash flow projections that support the carrylng value of the tangible and intangible assets of the company
support from the Holding company and the promoters, that the Company could have adequate resources to conlinue 1L ope

Accordingly, the financials have been prepared on golIng concern basfs and no Impalrment provision has been recognised,

49 The Pandemic COVID-19" has severely impacted business globally, Inciuding india, There has been severe disruption In regular business operations,

disruption in global supply chain and adversely impacting most of the incustries which has resutted in a glabal slowdown, including Indfa,
The Company has evaluated the impact of the pandemic on iLs business operalions, lquidity, intermal financial reporting and control and financtal posilien and based on the

management’s review of the current indicators and economic conditions, there is no material impact o
COVID -19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties assoclated with the nature and duration
future: economic conditions and business of the Company,

50 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reciassifled to confirm presentation as per Ind AS as required by Schedule I of the Act.

expaciation, Dived
a5 al March 31, 2020 and cammitled Nnanclal
rallonal existenze for the Torgsesnble fulire,

This panderic 1s creating

nits fnanclal resulls as at 31st March 2020, Toe assessmient of impact of
of the pandemic. The Company witt conlinuously moniter any material changes to
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